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ADDENDUM NO. 001 
 
 
 

RE: RFP 352499 – HNRTC Terrestrial and Aquatic Data Compilation  
 
Request for Proposal “RFP 352499- HNRTC Terrestrial and Aquatic Data 
Compilation” issued on 10/11/2021, is hereby amended as follows: 

 
 

1 Proposals are to be prepared in accordance with the instructions and conditions set forth herein.  
Proposals are to be received by the close of business (4:00 P.M., Pacific Daytime) on October 19, 
2021 to the address shown above, attention to the Contract Specialist identified above. 

 
 
Questions/Answers 

 
1. What is the period of performance for this subcontract? Will the end of the federal fiscal year 

result in having less than 12 months to complete Task 4? The POP can be extended into FY23, 
if needed. 
 

2. How does HMIS envision the role of BTR and Contract Specialist within the HNRTC NDRAR 
process? For example, the SOW describes meetings and communication with HNRTC Team 
Leads and consequently, the potential to change deliverables, timelines, level of effort and 
budget appear possible as the project progresses.  Will milestone/deadline changes and level of 
effort/budget changes be managed by HMIS, or the subcontractor? Milestones and deadlines for 
the tasks in the SOW will be managed by HMIS in close coordination with the HNRTC.  Any 
changes in scope or budget will be formally provided via contract change 

 
3. If a Data Manager is not currently under contract, will that delay the start of this contract 

considering the stated need for coordination with the Data Manager?  Award of the separate 
contract for data management will not impact the start of this effort. 

 
 

4. Will the scope of Task 4 also include any recommendations from new DUAs completed as part 
of Task 2?  Yes, Task 4 may include recommendations that result from actions completed in 
Task 2. 

 
5. Will travel for any in-person meetings be reimbursed under this subcontract at the GSA rate 

structure?  While travel is not envisioned for this contract, travel that is approved would be 
reimbursed in accordance with the current GSA rules and rates.  

 

 
 



 
6. Is Section 3.2 in the SOW applying requirements to the subcontractor’s normal hours of 

operation if they do not coincide with HMIS?  Section 3.2 Identifies HMIS work hours 
reflecting a typical 4-10s schedule.  However, the contractor perform work outside of those 
hours but must be available as needed to support HMIS meetings during HMIS normal business 
hours. 
  

7. Please clarify what is being requested for Volume II Price Support?  It is not clear if labor rates 
and direct costs are being requested, or if an overall project cost based on estimated hours to 
complete the four tasks is being requested.  If estimating hours to complete the four tasks is 
being requested, should we include our assumptions as part of this Vol. II?  EXCEL spreadsheet 
for information is attached.  There are tabs for each cost element that will need to be filled out 
as appropriate.   Yes, please include assumptions. 

 
8. The link to the Excel file (both in the list of exhibits and within Exhibit 001) appears broken.  

Can you please post the Excel file? Please clarify what is being requested as Figure 2 in Exhibit 
001? Please find attached EXCEL spreadsheet for pricing information.   

 
9. Please clarify what is being requested in Section 3.3 of the RFP? What are the options 

associated with this RFP?  No Options years will be included with this solicitation.  The option 
year clause has been deleted from the RFP.   

 
10. Please clarify what is being requested for billing rates (in Sections 3.2.2, 3.2.3 versus Section 

11.1). Are you requesting billing rates for proposed key personnel with calculated overhead 
rates and fees, or negotiated rates based on labor category?  Section 3.2.2 & 3.2.3 Labor Tab 
within the EXCEL spreadsheet clarifies what is being requested.  We are looking for the fully 
burden rate and the build-up.  11.1 Lowest Price Warranty is simply to make sure that the 
Government is given the same and/or lower rates than similar work being performed by the 
proposing company.   

 
 

11. Under RFP Section 3.2.3, if audited company financials are unavailable and accountant 
reviewed financials cannot be completed within 48 hours (due to circumstances beyond the 
control of the subcontractor), will HMIS extend the deadline for requirements under 3.2.3?   
Deadline will be held at 48 hours.  

 
12. Why is WA B&O tax included in Exhibit 001 when that is a company tax that is not passed 

onto clients? WA B&O tax is included in the exhibit to show the full buildup of the rate.  HMIS 
pays fully burden rates.   

 
13. Can the response due date be postponed by 14 days? Due October 19, 2021 

 
14. Solicitation Section 3.2.1 - Is HMIS requesting resumes for all proposed personnel? If not, can 

you please define which positions are considered key personnel? The subcontractor should 
provide resumes for principal investigator and supporting technical staff. 

 
15. Does HMIS intend for this to be a 2 FTE effort? The subcontract and SOW are not identifying 

the level of effort to complete the tasks.   
 



16. Solicitation Exhibits - The link to the ‘Compensation Schedule’ excel file appears to be broken, 
can you please provide that file?  It’s not clear if HMIS is requesting fully burdened labor rates 
or simply an overall cost. See EXCEL attached spreadsheet.  

 
17. What is the expected total period of performance?  12 months from contract award  

 
18. SOW Section 2.1 - Bullet states “Provide a completed checklist for each data parcel 

(Documents, content submission form, DUA, raw data, and imports for Project Portal, etc.).”  
Can you define a ‘checklist’?  Is the intent of this section to require the preparation of the DUA 
package? The contractor must account for the necessary items for each data parcel. This could 
be done through developing a checklist to ensure all necessary parts have been delivered.  

 
19. Please confirm that Task 4 is to happen concurrently with all other tasks, for completion within 

12 months of contract award. Yes. Task 4 can be completed at any time within the schedule of 
the project.  

 
20. SOW Section 10 – ‘Kickoff meeting’ states participants will include HMIS, Subcontractor, key 

lower tier subcontractors, and others having interest in the work. This differs from Page 5, 
Section 1.3 Description of Work, where it says the kickoff includes the BTR, subcontractor, 
HNRTC data manager, HNRTC team leads, and HNRTC trustees. Are there going to be two 
separate kickoff meetings? While the sections in the RFP use different terminology, the intent is 
that there will be a single kick-off meeting that will include representatives from the 
subcontractor, HMIS, and the HNRTC. 

 
21. SOW Appendix 3 - As stated in the SOW, the compilation of reports and a ‘memo’ to prioritize 

review/DUA is expected two months following contract award.  Is it expected that all 48 
documents listed are to be acquired and reviewed for relevance to DUA within the first 2 
months after award?  That is the intent. The operative words being to prioritize review for the 
DUA process. Not perform the DUA process. 

 
 
 

 
Thank you for your participation, we look forward to receiving your proposal no later than 
4:00 PM (PDT) on 10/19/2021. 

Please acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 001 with your proposal. 
 
 
Angie Rowland 
G3-62 
509.372.9708 
Angela_M_Rowland@rl.gov 
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